
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, January 22, 2024, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order  
 Invocation given by David Vander Wall 
 Pledge of Allegiance  
 Approve Agenda 
 Consent Agenda 

o Approval of the January 8th, 2024, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
o Bills 
o Interim Bills 
o Budget Amendment 2024-1: Replacement Computer for the Finance Director 

 For information 
o Planning Commission- no meeting January 1, 2024 
o Notice of hire: Library Director, Abby Black 
o December Sheriffs Department Monthly Report 
o December Fire Department Monthly Report 

 Public Hearings 
 Public Comments 
 Guest Speakers  
 Action Items 

o Resolution 2024-03 Authorization for the Purchase of Real Estate Located at 11147 60th 
Ave 

o Public Utility Operator Job Descriptions 
 Discussion Items 

o Engineering Proposal: Watermain North Loop and Southern Connector 
o Engineering Proposal: Pierce St / 56th Ave Lift Station and Surrounding Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements 
o Engineering Proposal: Sewer Master Plan Update 

 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 
Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 3 
 

PROPOSED 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

JANUARY SESSION 1st DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, January 8, 2024, at 
6:00 p.m. and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present at Roll Call: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Schuitema; Ms. Kraker; 
and Mr. Elenbaas. (5) 
 
Absent at Roll Call: Mr. Smit; Mr. Vander Wall (2) 
 
Staff and Guests Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Sgt. Cal Keuning, 
Sheriff’s Department; Greg DeJong; Nick Lilly; Steve VanDyken; Joshua 
Warners; Sharon Shaffer; James Christopoulos; and Andrew Christopoulos. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 
 

BOT 24-001 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the agenda of today as presented. The 
motion passed.  

 
BOT 24-002 Ms. Kraker moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions:  
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the December 27, 2023, Board of Trustees meeting 
as presented. 

 
2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $119,156.53 and interim 

payments of $121,906.17, as presented by the summary report for January 8, 
2024. 

 
The motion passed.  

 
Items Received for Information 

1. Minutes of the December 18, 2023, Planning Commission Meeting.  
2. Planning Commission 2023 Annual Report 
3. Planning Commission 2024 Work Program 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Public Hearings- None 

1. Proposed Amendments to the Walgreens PUD- Raymond Building 
Mr. Elenbaas opened the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. 
Comments were received from:  
1. James Christopoulos 
 

BOT 24-003 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close the public hearing at 6:08 p.m. The motion 
passed. 

 
Public Comments- None 
 

BOT 24-004 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers- None  
 

 Action Items 
BOT 24-005 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to sign 

Resolution 2024-01 as amended: Amendment to the Walgreens PUD-Raymond 
Building; a resolution amending the PUD as shown in the site plan titled The 
Raymond Building as amended by removing item “I- Catering Establishments” from 
the requested allowable list uses for Parcel C of the Walgreens PUD, prepared by 
Nederveld, Inc. dated 12/05/2023, Project No. 21201161. The motion passed as 
shown by the following votes: 

 
 YAYS: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Schuitema; and Mr. Elenbaas (5) 
 NAYS: None (0) 
 ABSENT: Mr. Smit; and Mr. Vander Wall (2)  
 
 BOT 24-006 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the Emerald Springs Tentative Preliminary Plat 

Approval. The motion passed.  
 
BOT 24-007 Ms. Schuitema moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and/or Supervisor to 

sign Resolution 2024-02: 2024 Board Meeting Dates Corrected; a resolution 
correcting the Board of Trustee meeting dates for 2024; specifically amending the 
May 27, 2024, date and changing it to May 28, 2024. The motion passed.  

 
 Discussion Items- None 
 
 Public Comments- None 
     
BOT 24-008 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Board Comments 
 Mr. Elenbaas informed the board that the Road Commission is seeking to place 

a proposal on the August ballot. They are seeking support on this initiative 
from all local jurisdictions. Mr. Elenbaas sought directive from the board on 
how to proceed. He also informed the board that Sam Eiler has resigned from 
the Library Advisory Board. Mr. Elenbaas is working with Human Resources to 
have the open seat posted on the township website.  

  
BOT 24-009 Ms. Kraker moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:41 p.m. The motion passed.  
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 















DATE CHECK # AMOUNT VENDOR DESCRIPTION

1/11/2024 104723 44,030.26$       GSM PROPERTIES II LLC
Development Fee Escrow Acct Refund & 
Performance Deposit Refund

1/11/2024 104724 15,457.90$       PEARLINE CENTENNIAL FARMS LLC Development Fee Escrow Acct Refund
1/12/2024 EFT 2,181.50$         PRIORITY HEALTH HRA Payment
1/16/2024 104725 437.45$            WEX BANK-EXXON MOBIL Fuel Charges
1/16/2024 104726 24,608.06$       CONSUMERS ENERGY Electric Usage - January
1/18/2024 EFT 74,088.33$       EMPLOYEES Bi-Weekly Payroll
1/18/2024 EFT 22,332.59$       FEDERAL GOV'T Payroll IRS Tax Payment
1/19/2024 EFT 228.05$            PRIORITY HEALTH HRA Payment

EFT State of Michigan January State payroll withholdings

183,364.14$     

INTERIM PAYMENTS
Board Meeting: 1/22/2024



Fund Name: General Fund Requested by: Tim VanBennekokm
Department Name: Finance/Acct Date: 1/18/2024

Fund/Dept Number: 101-191 Amendment #: 1
Year: 2024

Current Budget This Amendment Revised Budget
TOTAL REVENUES: $0.00

EXPENDITURES: GL Number:
Miscellaneous $0.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 101-191.000-955.000

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $0.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00

Revenue Over/(Under) Expenditures $0.00 ($2,400.00)
$2,400.00

Revenue change explanation

Expenditure change explanation

Approved/Denied?

Expenditure Change to Department

Budget Amendment Request

The Finance/Acct Director's computer has been acting up and is almost 5 years old. 



     
 

 

Library Director 

No ce of Hire- Abby Black 

Prepared by Lydale Weaver 

On 1/5/2024 

Board of Trustees: 

We have reviewed applica ons for the Library Director posi on. The panelists involved 

in the interview process included: Adam Elenbaas, Township Supervisor; Jody Hansen, 

Township Clerk; Ashley Johnson, Youth Services Librarian and Interim Director; Pa  Walco , 

Library Advisory Board Member; and Lydale Weaver, Director of Human Resources. The hiring 

panel unanimously recommends Abby Black for the posi on of Library Director. 

Abby brings experience from both the public and private sector and has progressive 

experience working with both small and large libraries in the surrounding area. She also holds a 

requisite Level 1 Cer fica on with the Library of Michigan. Importantly, her passion for 

customer service came through during the interview. She was passionate about having a high 

level of quality customer service while making sure the library is relevant to those it serves. She 

came across as very community-minded and collabora ve, and her real-world experience will 

be helpful to our library team and their service to the community. We think she is a great 

candidate to work with our team and serve local residents. 

Given her level of experience, Abby will be star ng at an annual salary of $64,000.  We 

are ecsta c for Abby to join Allendale Charter Township and look forward to her growth in the 

posi on. 



     
 

 

 

Respec ully, 

Adam Elenbaas and Lydale Weaver 

Township Supervisor and HR Director 

 



  

County of Ottawa 
 

Steve A. Kempker 
Sheriff 

 
Valerie L. Weiss 

Undersheriff Sheriff’s Office 
 Headquarters/Administration Correctional Facility 

 12220 Fillmore Street	 12130 Fillmore Street  

 West Olive, Michigan   49460 West Olive, Michigan   49460 

 (616) 738-4000 or (888) 731-1001 (616) 786-4140 or (888) 731-1001 

 Fax:  (616) 738-4062 Fax:  (616) 738-4099 

 
 
 
 
 
Date:   01-05-2024  
 
To:      Allendale Township Supervisor Adam Elenbaas 
 
From:  Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
RE:     Monthly Report (December 2023) 
 
 
The Sheriff’s Office during the month of December responded to 395 calls for service.  
 
Allendale Township Basic EMT and MFR units, with the assistance of general road patrol, 
responded to 72 medicals and 1 personal injury accident.  
 
Traffic contacts during the month of December, deputies issued 69 total tickets. 
 
 
 
Allendale School News: 
Deputy Ortman presented to the 3rd grade classrooms at Allendale Christian School about being 
a police officer and serving the community.  
 
Deputy Ortman continued staying busy teaching multiple TEAM classes to the 4th and 5th grade 
classes. TEAM stands for Teaching, Educating, and Mentoring. Topics included “how to say no” 
and “picking good friends”. Other topics included gateway drugs and legal effects.  
 
In the 7th and 9th grade classes, presentations were on drugs, vapes, tobacco, and appropriate 
use of technology.  

 
 
 
 
 



 
While on patrol during a 6th grade recess, Deputy Ortman stopped and arrested an elf (Principle 
Plain), for not having proper paperwork at school. Thanks for keeping the kids safe Deputy 
Ortman. 
 

     
 
 
Stuff the Fire Truck: 
Deputy Apolo and Deputy J. Miller assisted with Stuff the FireTruck. Deputies, and an old fire 
truck from Engine House #5, made numerous stops around Allendale Township collecting can 
goods and non perishable goods for local charities. Deputy Apolo also assisted in apprehending 
the Grinch who showed up at one of the stops trying to steal Christmas. 
 

           
 

                                
 



Cram the Cruiser: 
Deputy Apolo, Sgt. Keuning, Family Life Center, and Family Fare teamed up for a Cram the 
Cruiser event at Family Fare. Nonperishables were donated and “stuffed” into our police cars for 
Family Life Center.  
 
Family Life Center staff brought their van and people could come up and write on the van what 
they were thankful for. Numerous people showed up to this event to donate and write what they 
were thankful for.  
 

     
 

    
 
 
 
Thank you. 

 
Sgt. Cal Keuning 
 
 
 

 
 



Total Number of Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020 366 450 300 290 389 410 414 500 458 458 454 374
2021 396 395 463 416 516 433 450 475 512 520 407 436
2022 394 399 436 420 488 460 437 442 527 533 463 444
2023 352 358 381 471 446 439 383 405 492 473 405 395

Total Tickets by Month

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020 84 151 78 33 64 68 72 93 70 63 63 72

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Allendale Township Calls for Service

2020

2021

2022

2023



2021 70 40 66 79 85 116 73 88 177 129 88 108
2022 93 104 149 114 90 71 78 73 100 166 71 42
2023 144 125 71 68 42 25 29 36 122 166 64 69

Traffic Crashes 

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020 44 55 22 14 28 15 18 23 33 31 49 37
2021 37 29 28 27 30 35 28 31 34 43 36 43
2022 54 36 20 24 26 26 24 20 34 51 46 29
2023 37 28 20 32 24 36 19 18 36 40 45 30

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Allendale Township Tickets

2020

2021

2022

2023



Medical Calls

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020 58 57 49 44 41 43 53 45 42 54 55 42
2021 46 32 48 41 59 35 37 60 41 64 42 48
2022 47 50 61 47 61 55 46 56 50 61 51 62
2023 45 45 68 56 63 52 46 52 60 54 46 72

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Allendale Township Traffic Crashes

2020

2021

2022

2023

60

70

80

Allendale Township Medical Calls



Calls of Interest 2023

January February March April May June July August September October November December
B & E's 0 2 1 4 2 5 0 1 4 5 1 0
Larcenies 5 5 5 17 4 6 15 9 8 23 7 10
Shoplifting 2 1 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 0 1
Mental 6 10 9 12 15 13 8 5 5 3 4 3
Civil 7 10 12 6 6 10 8 12 15 11 11 10
Assaults 3 4 3 4 7 3 2 2 2 0 5 4
Domestic 29 20 33 23 35 22 18 22 18 31 25 18
Animal 9 14 16 12 12 23 16 21 10 11 12 19
Alarms 5 10 7 13 10 6 5 7 8 11 8 15
Traffic 20 20 18 31 37 43 31 25 45 27 30 18
Narcotics 3 4 2 5 5 0 1 3 4 8 1 1
Weapons 1 1 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 1

Calls of Interest 2022

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

10

20

30

40

50
2020

2021

2022

2023



B & E's 1 3 3 2 4 1 6 3 3 3 2 3
Larcenies 7 19 15 6 7 18 11 15 12 6 8 9
Shoplifting 0 1 0 0 4 1 1 1 2 0 0 0
Mental 7 6 5 15 10 15 9 6 11 15 14 8
Civil 11 11 8 12 5 8 11 14 10 11 11 13
Assaults 5 5 3 5 3 4 4 2 7 9 3 4
Domestic 26 13 17 20 21 25 25 18 27 37 22 27
Animal 8 16 14 18 30 28 24 15 24 15 14 10
Alarms 9 6 7 5 7 8 12 3 8 5 7 14
Traffic 19 33 35 34 40 39 31 31 41 37 30 33
Narcotics 2 0 3 1 0 1 2 3 2 2 4 3
Weapons 0 1 4 7 3 4 2 2 1 3 2 1





























RESOLUTION 2024‐03 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan, held 

at  the Township Hall at 6676  Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale Charter Township, Ottawa County, Michigan, on 

January 22, 2024, at 6:00 p.m., local time. 

PRESENT:_____________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE 

(11147 60th Avenue, Allendale MI) 
 

WHEREAS, the MOST REVEREND DAVID J. WALKOWIAK, BISHOP OF THE ROMAN CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF GRAND 

RAPIDS, MICHIGAN, IN TRUST FOR ST. LUKE UNIVERSITY PARISH – ALLENDALE owns real property commonly known 

as 11147 60th Avenue, Allendale, MI 49401, PPN 70‐09‐26‐100‐073 (the “Subject Property”), 

WHEREAS, the Township desires to purchase the Subject Property, 
 
WHEREAS, the parties have entered a purchase agreement for the Subject Property, which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, (the “Purchase Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties have obtained the necessary title work, environmental assessments, and related information 
necessary to complete the transaction. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa County, 
Michigan as follows: 
 
1. The Allendale Charter Township Board hereby approves the purchase of the Subject Property for the sum 
of One Million Five Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,550,000.00) in accordance with the terms of 
the Purchase Agreement, and directs the Treasurer and/or finance manager to tender all sums due under the terms 
of the Purchase Agreement and related due diligence to the required parties. 
 
2. The  Allendale  Charter  Township  Board  hereby  grants  authority  to  the  Township  Supervisor  and  the 
Township Clerk to take all actions necessary to purchase the Subject Property pursuant to the terms of the Purchase 
Agreement, including without limitation signing all closing documents on behalf of the Township at any scheduled 
closing.  
 
3. All resolutions in conflict herewith in whole or in part are hereby revoked to the extent of such conflict. 
 
YEAS:  

 

NAYS:    ABSENT:  
 

Resolution declared adopted on January 22, 2024. 

 
______________________________      ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen            Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk      Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement

and other valuable consideration, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows:

Seller owns the certain realty commonly known as 11147 60th Avenue, Allendale, MI
49401, PPN 70-09-26-100-073 and legally described on the attached Exhibit A, consisting of

approximately 14.41 acres, together with all improvements, fixtures, easements, division rights,

tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto (including Seller’s mineral, oil/gas, utility,

and riparian rights) belonging or in any way appertaining (collectively, “Premises”); and

Seller desires to sell the Premises, and Buyer desires to purchase the Premises, in

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effective as of that date the last party signs this

Agreement (“Effective Date”), is by and between MOST REVEREND DAVID J.

WALKOWIAK, BISHOP OF THE ROMAN CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF GRAND RAPIDS,

MICHIGAN, IN TRUST FOR ST. LUKE UNIVERSITY PARISH - ALLENDALE, whose

address is 360 Division Ave. S., Grand Rapids, Michigan, 49503, hereinafter called the “Seller,”

and ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP, a Michigan charter township, of 6676 Lake

Michigan Drive, Allendale, Michigan, 49401, hereinafter called the “Buyer” and based on the

following facts and circumstances:

2. Closing. The closing of the sale and purchase of the Premises (“Closing”) will take

place on a date and time as is mutually agreeable to the parties, provided, however, that Closing

will occur no earlier than January 1 , 2024. The Closing shall be held at a place mutually agreed

upon by the parties, but in the absence of such agreement, at the offices of the Title Company

(defined herein). In the event that the Closing does not occur on or before February 29, 2024,

either Seller or Buyer may terminate this Agreement by providing written notice of such

termination to the other party.

1. Purchase Price; Payment. The Purchase Price to be paid for the Premises shall be

the sum of One Million Five Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,550,000.00)

(“Purchase Price”). The Purchase Price shall be paid at Closing (defined herein) in immediately

available funds, less any other adjustments and prorations detailed herein. Upon payment of all

amounts due Seller under this Agreement, Seller shall convey title to the Premises to Buyer, by a

warranty deed, subject to easements, restrictions, interests and reservations of record, taxes and

assessments not yet due and payable, and any matters that would be shown by an accurate land

title survey prepared in accordance with the latest standards approved by the American Land Title

Association and the National Society of Professional Surveyors ("Deed").



At Closing, Seller shall pay the title insurance premium for Buyer’s title insurance policy

as required by Paragraph 4 (but Buyer shall be responsible for and shall pay all costs and charges

associated with any endorsements to such policy desired by Buyer), the County and State transfer

taxes, and any real estate commission due to Seller’s agent. Buyer shall pay for the cost of any

lender’s policy of title insurance (if any) and the recording of the warranty deed. Seller and Buyer

shall each pay one-half of any closing fee charged by the Title Company closing agent, but
otherwise be responsible for their own closing costs, including attorney fees. Buyer shall be

responsible for any costs associated with Buyer’s due diligence.

2.1. At the Closing, Seller shall execute and deliver: (i) the Deed; (ii) a real estate

transfer tax valuation affidavit; (iii) a closing statement setting forth the Purchase Price and closing

adjustments; (iv) an affidavit of just compensation reasonably acceptable to Seller; (v) a

commercially reasonable Owner’s affidavit(s) in the form reasonably prescribed by the Title

Company for the removal of its standard exceptions and to furnish (as modified by Seller); (vi)

nonforeign affidavit; (vii) an ALTA (defined herein) title insurance policy, which shall insure

Buyer’s title as required by this Agreement; (viii) actual physical possession of the Premises, free

of all tenants or other occupants (but subject to the matters described in the Deed) and (viii) other

documents reasonably necessary or legally required to evidence the transaction contemplated by

this Agreement. Buyer acknowledges that the Premises may require repairs or maintenance and

Buyer agrees to accept the Premises in its present "AS IS" condition, with no warranties concerning

its condition or permitted use.

2.2. At Closing, Buyer shall execute and deliver: (i) the Purchase Price; (ii) a

closing statement setting forth the Purchase Price and closing adjustments and proration; and (iii)

any other documents reasonably necessary or legally required to evidence the transaction

contemplated by this Agreement.

3. Conditions to Closing. Buyer’s obligation to close the transactions contemplated

by this Agreement shall be subject to, and conditioned upon the following at the time of Closing:

(i) Buyer is satisfied, in its sole discretion, that the Premises are in compliance with all applicable

governmental orders, regulations, statutes, and ordinances; (ii) Buyer’s satisfaction, in its sole

discretion, with the status of title, Survey, and inspections of and to the Premises; (iii) all

representations and warranties of Seller set forth in this Agreement being true as of the Closing;

and (iv) Buyer has obtained necessary approvals from its Board. If one or more of the

contingencies is not satisfied, and Buyer is not willing to waive such contingencies, Buyer may

terminate this Agreement by written notice to Seller and neither party shall have any further

liability to the other under this Agreement (except as described in Paragraph 5).

4. Title. Seller shall promptly arrange to furnish to Buyer a commitment for an

American Land Title Association (“ALTA”) owner’s title insurance policy for the Premises from

Sun Title (c/o Lawrence Duthler (616) 317-4220, lduthler@suntitle.com) (“Title Company”);

such commitment shall be in the amount of the Purchase Price, show title in Seller (collectively,

“Title Commitment”). If an objection is made, Seller may, at their expense, to correct any defects

in title; however, if Seller is unable or unwilling to correct these defects in title prior to Closing,

Buyer may rescind this Agreement and neither party shall have any further liability to the other

under this Agreement (except as described in Paragraph 5). Buyer shall have the right to notify the



5.

Title Company issuing the Title Commitment of any matters affecting title to the Premises which

have not been disclosed by the Title Commitment and which come to the attention of Buyer.

Notwithstanding anything in this Paragraph 4 to the contrary, Buyer may waive any or all defects

in title.

Buyer’s Right of Inspection. Buyer and its agents shall be entitled to investigate,

to Buyer’s satisfaction and at Buyer’s expense, the condition of the Premises as well as any matter

pertaining to the Premises including, its appearance, environmental condition, zoning

classification, tax classification, and any required inspection of a septic system by Ottawa County

or its agents. The costs of all such inspections shall be borne by Buyer; notwithstanding, within

five days from the date of this Agreement, Seller shall endeavor to furnish Buyer with true copies

of any prior inspection reports in the possession or control of Seller. If Buyer notifies Seller on or

before Closing that this condition precedent is not fulfilled to the satisfaction of Buyer, Buyer may,

at Buyer's sole discretion, terminate this Agreement and neither party shall have any further

liability to the other under this Agreement (except as described in Paragraph 5). Buyer will

indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any claims or damage arising solely from any such

inspections. Buyer will also reimburse Seller for any third party costs and liabilities incurred by

Seller arising from Buyer’s inspections and activity on the Premises. Buyer’s obligations under

this paragraph shall survive the Closing. Buyer acknowledges that Buyer has had the opportunity

to investigate all matters of interest pertinent to the Premises, including, without limitation, its

environmental condition and history.

7.1. Except as may be disclosed in writing to Buyer prior to the Closing, Seller

has not received written notice of any material violation of any federal, state, and local laws, rules,

regulations, orders, decrees, regulations, ordinances, or requirements in any way involving or

affecting the Premises.

7. Representations and Warranties of Seller. Seller represents and warrants to

Buyer, which shall all be true on and as of the date of this Agreement and through to and on the

date of Closing, that:

6. Survey. Buyer may arrange for a survey of the Premises (“Survey”) at Buyer’s

expense, and Seller agrees to cooperate with the same, including, by the Seller endeavoring to

deliver a copy of any surveys of the Premises in their possession to Buyer. If Buyer elects to order

a Survey, Buyer must object to any matters disclosed in the Survey prior to Closing. If no such

objection is made prior to Closing, Buyer shall be deemed to have waived all objections to the

Survey. If such an objection is made and Seller does not remedy the same, at Seller’s expense and

in a manner reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, prior to Closing, Buyer may, at Buyer’s sole option

(and as Buyer’s sole remedy), either accept the Survey or terminate this Agreement, in which case

neither party shall have any further liability to the other under this Agreement (except as described

in Paragraph 5). Buyer hereby releases Seller from all responsibility, claims, obligations, and

liability arising from or associated with (i) the presence or release of any hazardous substance or

solid or hazardous waste (as those terms are defined in applicable federal and state environmental

protection laws and regulations); and (ii) any environmental matters associated with or arising

from the condition or use of the Premises prior to, on or after the Closing.



The foregoing representations and warranties shall survive the Closing for one year. Seller

shall hold Buyer harmless, indemnify, and at Buyer’s option, defend Buyer from and against any

loss, including attorney’s fees and litigation expenses, incurred by reason of Seller’s breach of any

of any then surviving foregoing representations and warranties.

7.3. Except as may be disclosed in writing to Buyer prior to the Closing, Seller

has not received written notice of any pending or threatened claims, litigation, or condemnation

proceedings, affecting all or any part of the Premises;

8. Disclosures. The Premises being vacant land, no Seller’s Disclosure Statement or

Lead-Based Paint Disclosure form are provided by Seller. Seller shall promptly disclose to Buyer

in writing any matter of which Seller has actual knowledge or notice that would make the

representations contained in Section 7 inaccurate as of the date of Closing.

7.2. Except as may be disclosed in writing to Buyer prior to the Closing, at all

times that Seller has owned title to the Premises, it has enjoyed exclusive possession of the same

(subject to the matters set forth in the Deed).

7.4. Seller has the full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to

assume and perform all of Seller’s obligations under this Agreement.

11. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and the benefits hereof shall

inure to the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Neither party may assign

10. Condemnation. Seller shall promptly notify Buyer of any impending or actual

condemnation proceedings against the Premises or any portion of the Premises ofwhich Seller has

actual notice. If any material portion of the Premises shall be threatened to be condemned, Buyer

shall have the right (i) to terminate this Agreement, and in such event neither party shall have any

further liability under this Agreement (except as described in Paragraph 5), or (ii) to proceed to

Closing, agreeing to take the Premises in its then-current condition and be entitled to receive all

condemnation proceeds. If an immaterial portion of the Premises shall be threatened to be

condemned or be condemned, Buyer shall proceed to Closing and be entitled to receive all

condemnation proceeds.

9. Real Estate Taxes and Assessments; Prorations. Seller shall pay in full all

general real estate taxes billed against the Premises prior to Closing, if any, and shall furnish

adequate proof of payment to Buyer at or prior to Closing. Seller shall pay in full all outstanding

special taxes and assessments, if any, against the Premises at or prior to Closing; however, if such

an assessment is payable in installments, Seller shall only be responsible for such installments

billed prior to Closing. Real estate taxes billed during calendar year of Closing shall be pro-rated

between the parties on a calendar year basis, with Buyer receiving a credit from Seller for the part

of the calendar year of Closing expired as of Closing, based upon most recent available

information. For purposes of this paragraph, it is understood and agreed that all real estate taxes

billed during a calendar year are real estate taxes for that calendar year. Further, Seller shall pay

all utility bills through the day before Closing based on meter or other readings taken on the date

of Closing.



this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except that the Buyer may assign this

Agreement without the consent of Seller to any entity Buyer forms for the purpose of owning the

Premises.

15. Construction; Interpretation. The headings of each Paragraph are for

convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or construction of this

Agreement. The recitals to this Agreement are hereby incorporated by reference, ratified, and

confirmed as part of this Agreement. The definitions and pronouns contained in this Agreement

are applicable to the singular as well as to the plural forms of such terms and to the masculine as

well as the feminine and neuter genders of such terms. The use of the word “including” herein

shall mean “including, without limitation.” The words “hereof,” “herein,” and words of similar

import, when used in this Agreement, shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any

particular provision of this Agreement. The word “or” when used herein shall be in the inclusive

sense. All references to “$” and dollars in this Agreement shall mean United States dollars unless

otherwise specifically provided. The word “shall” denotes a directive and obligation, and not an

option. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of Seller shall survive the

consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and not be deemed merged into

any deed of conveyance. Except as otherwise specified, whenever any action must be taken on or

by a day that is not a business day, then such action may be validly taken on or by the next day

that is a business day. When used herein, “business day(s)” means each day during which

nationally chartered banks in Michigan are open for normal and customary business.

16. Default. If Buyer defaults in Buyer's obligations so that the purchase described

herein is not timely closed, then Seller may terminate this Agreement by notice to Buyer. If Seller

defaults in Seller's obligations under this Agreement so that the purchase described herein is not

timely closed, then Buyer may terminate this Agreement by notice to Seller. Alternatively, either

party may elect to have specific performance of this Agreement or claim against the defaulting

party for actual damages.

13. Notice. Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be served by United

States mail, certified, return receipt requested or by FedEx or UPS at the addresses set forth herein

and deemed received two days after placement in the United States mail or one business day after

deposit with FedEx or UPS.

12. Governing Law; Severability. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of

the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of Michigan, without

reference to any applicable conflict of laws provisions. The invalidation of one or more of the

terms of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining terms.

14. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in

separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall

constitute the same instrument. The parties agree that evidence of signatures on this Agreement,

and all other documents or agreements referenced, or necessary to evidence or close the

transactions contemplated, may be delivered by facsimile or electronic mail in lieu of an original

signature, and the parties agree to treat such signatures as original signatures and shall be bound.



Signatures Contained on the Following Page

18. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement, including all exhibits and any

schedules and addenda, express the entire understanding between Seller and Buyer with respect to

the transaction contemplated thereby. All prior communications concerning this transaction are

merged in and superseded by this Agreement. No amendment, alteration, or modification to this

Agreement shall be made except by written instrument signed by all the parties hereto.

17. Miscellaneous. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. If the date for Closing,

for the delivery of a document, or for giving of a notice falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or bank

holiday, then it shall be automatically deferred to the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or

bank holiday. Seller and Buyer recognize that the law firm of Warner Norcross + Judd LLP

("Legal Counsel") is representing the Seller in the purchase described herein. Buyer has either

hired independent legal counsel or knowingly elected not to hire independent counsel to represent

it in the transaction contemplated by this Agreement. All notices, requests, consents and other

communications required by this Agreement must be in writing and shall be delivered to Seller

and Buyer at their respective addresses set forth above, or at another place designated by like notice

to one another. Notice shall be effective upon receipt, if personally delivered, or upon mailing, if

mailed. Delivery of a notice by recognized overnight delivery service shall also be sufficient. The

headings and captions of the various subdivisions of this Agreement are for convenience of

reference only and shall in no way modify or affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms

or provisions of this Agreement. Notice shall be effective upon receipt, if personally delivered, or

upon mailing, if mailed. This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts, and by

different parties to this Agreement on separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an

original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. Faxed signatures,

or scanned and electronically transmitted signatures, on this Agreement or any notice delivered

pursuant to this Agreement, shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as original signatures.

In the event of a dispute arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to actual

attorney fees and costs.



SELLER:

Date:

BUYER:

Date:

1 1- "27 -2.02-3Date:

ansen

28340477-3

By: Adam Elenbaas

Its: Supervisor

By. Jody L.

Its: Clerk

ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP,

a Michigan charter township

MOST RI

BISHOP \

DIOCESE

TRUST FOR ST. LUKE UNIVERSITY PARISH -

ALLENDALE

iEREND DAVID J. WALKOWIAK,

)F THE ROMAN CATHOLIC

•F GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN, IN

The parties have executed and delivered the above Agreement as of the date first referenced

above.



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

E 61 8 FT OF N 1 208.38 FT OF NE 1/4 OF NW 1/4, EXC M-45 R/W. SEC 26 T7N R1 4W

PPN: 70-09-26-1 00-073.

[Legal Description to be confirmed by Title Commitment]

’’Ml

H

!
r1

<
* A

i

4

A ff

1

«?ji

2041001

faMW.

| 201.007

1
1

ttlSQ
033133

;

i

l^c

E
12?SP

oaai
« ..

i"
I, 1

,4

1 »

hi I • 'm :f
I ’i - Glu}l

Bj r

A-.$

i w
W' , s
1001072

f ‘ fl

ssbF ,
ijnooiS1'

•r- I in , UB.k-**"?** 1 w 1

* %

MWjeMI
— »#* MK 1 m*'” 1 » « -• —W_a

gwo
i jia ' A

Hf'tV; ut | . <

'' ®
J
J r^s3'



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
 
JOB	TITLE:	 Public Utilities Operator I 
DEPARTMENT:	 Public Utilities 
REPORTS	TO:	 Water and Wastewater Supervisors 
FLSA	STATUS:	 Non-exempt 
POSITION	TYPE:	 Full time 7:00am-3:30pm, Rotating weekend/on-call schedule 
SALARY	RANGE:	
	

A-5U 
License Incentive: Michigan Municiapal Water Distribution 
Operator  S-4, S-3 Water Distribution License and Michigan 
Wastewater Operates LicenseTreatment Plant Operator Class 
Cer fica on C and D will receive a ($0.25) hourly increase per 
license to the wage upon certi ication. 
 

EFFECTIVE	DATE:	 	
	
SUMMARY:			

This is a full-time position with Allendale Charter Township that requires some lexibility in 
working hours as overtime is required for mandatory rotating weekend shift. This position 
involves working with a team of approximately 5-8 other public utilities employees at the plant 
in Allendale, MIMichigan, as well as working offsite as required. Licensing is available through 
the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.   

Bene its include: health, dental, vision, generous 401(a) retirement program, short-term and 
long-term disability, life insurance, paid time off, and other insurance options as 
desiredofferings. This position performs tasks involved in the operation, maintenance and repair 
of equipment and machinery in the Water Distribution System and Water Resource Recovery 
Facility.  Within prescribed limits, the operation and laboratory work is performed with 
considerable independence and without close supervision.  

ESSENTIAL	DUTIES	AND	RESPONSIBILITIES:		
	

 Daily operation of public utilities, including but not limited to, maintenance of 
motors, pumps, treatment systems, vehicles, equipment at the water resource 
recovery facility, the collection system and distribution system, and sample 
collection. 

 Operate and maintain meter stations, lift stations, water storage tanks, mains, and 
services. 

 Inspect and assist with the repair of drinking water and sewerage transmission 
mains and services. 

 General maintenance of facility and grounds. 
 Perform lab analysis and make necessary calculations and records results. 
 Rotating week-end schedule and be on call for emergencies. 
 Install and repair water meters, exercise hydrants and valves, as well as lushing 

hydrants. 
 Read water meters. 
 Work variable hours for water meter retro itting. 
 Communicate with Public Utilities team regarding status of equipment and samples. 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
 Monitors a control station, levels, and other instruments to make necessary 

adjustments using a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) interface. 

Reasonable	accommodations	may	be	made	to	enable	quali ied	individuals	
																														with	disabilities	to	perform	these	essential	functions.	

	
REQUIRED	SKILLS,	ABILITIES	and	KNOWLEGDGEKNOWLEDGE:	
	

 Possession of a Michigan S-4 and D Operator License from the State of Michigan is 
required within ive (5) years of hiring.	

 Ability to use computers with a working knowledge of Microsoft Of ice Suite.	
 Ability to work independently. 
 Ability to comprehend blueprints. 
 Ability to follow safety procedures to ensure a safe working environment. 
 Ability to communicate effectively on the telephone, text, and public settings. 
 Possession of good powers of observation and mechanical aptitude. 

 
Special	Requirements: Employee must obtain a Michigan S-4 Water Distribution Certi icate and 
Michigan Wastewater Treatment Operator Class D Certi icate through Michigan’s Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy within ive (5) years of date of hire. Applicants must be 
eligible to obtain such certi ications at the time of hire. 
 
MINIMUM	QUALIFICATIONS:	 
	
Education:		 Minimum two (2) years college credit to include math, biology, 

and chemistry course with lab component, or equivalent.  
Experience:		 Previous public utility experience desired. 
Licenses:		  Possession of a valid, Michigan motor vehicle operator’s 

license. 
 TheSee Special Requirements noted above. Applicants 

must have the desire to continue learning wastewater 
treatment and water distribution principles as licensing 
is required through Michigan Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, and be eligible 
to obtain such certi ications at the time of hire. 

 Possession of a valid, Michigan motor vehicle 
operator’s license. 

Miscellaneous:	  Basic reading and writing skills, with knowledge of 
spelling, punctuation, and grammar. 

 Collaboration and communication with other 
employees. 

 Logic, intuition, analysis, research, organization, and 
judgment skills. 

	
SUPERVISORY	RESPONSIBILITIES:			
	



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
None 
	
WORKING	CONDITIONS:		
	
General working conditions are outside.  Employees must be willing to work in all weather 
conditions, including adverse weather conditions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
	
PHYSICAL	REQUIREMENTS:		

 
 Ability to operate equipment involved in the maintenance of the facility. 
 Ability to lift and carry 50 lbs. 
 Ability and working knowledge of how to use hand tools. 

	
TRAVEL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	
Minimal (Conferences and Training Seminars) 
 
OTHER	DUTIES:			
	
Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
performed in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this 
job, nor is it intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township 
manager or supervisor to assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  
Duties, responsibilities, and activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any  
time, with or without notice. 
   

 
By signing below, I af irm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and 

had an opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position 
explained to me.   
 
APPLICANT:			

 
_______________________________________ __________________________________ ________________________ 

Allendale	 Charter	 Township	 is	 an	 “at‐will”,	 equal	 opportunity	 employer.	 	 If	 a	 job	 offer	 is	made,	
employment	may	be	contingent	upon	the	successful	completion	and	passage	of	a	medical	examination	
and	other	appropriate	background	 checks,	which	may	 include	providing	body	 substance	 samples	
(e.g.,	blood,	urine,	and/or	hair).		We	consider	applicants	for	all	positions	without	regard	to	race,	color,	
creed,	 religion,	 genetic	 information,	 gender,	 gender	 identity,	 sexual	 orientation,	 national	 origin,	
veteran	status,	age,	disability,	marital	status,	height,	weight,	or	any	other	 legally	protected	status	
under	local,	state,	or	federal	law.	



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date  
	
	

For Of ice Use Only:  

Received by:    ______________________________________ 

Date:             _______________________________________ 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
 
JOB	TITLE:	 Public Utilities Operator I 
DEPARTMENT:	 Public Utilities 
REPORTS	TO:	 Water and Wastewater Supervisors 
FLSA	STATUS:	 Non-exempt 
POSITION	TYPE:	 Full time 7:00am-3:30pm, Rotating weekend/on-call schedule 
SALARY	RANGE:	
	

A-5U 
License Incentive: Michigan Municipal Water Distribution 
Operator S-4, S-3 and Michigan Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Operator C and D will receive a ($0.25) hourly increase per license 
to the wage upon certi ication. 
 

EFFECTIVE	DATE:	 	
	
SUMMARY:			

This is a full-time position with Allendale Charter Township that requires some lexibility in 
working hours as overtime is required for mandatory rotating weekend shift. This position 
involves working with a team of approximately 5-8 other public utilities employees at the plant 
in Allendale, Michigan, as well as working offsite as required. Licensing is available through the 
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.   

Bene its include: health, dental, vision, generous 401(a) retirement program, short-term and 
long-term disability, life insurance, paid time off, and other insurance offerings. This position 
performs tasks involved in the operation, maintenance and repair of equipment and machinery 
in the Water Distribution System and Water Resource Recovery Facility.  Within prescribed limits, 
the operation and laboratory work is performed with considerable independence and without 
close supervision.  

ESSENTIAL	DUTIES	AND	RESPONSIBILITIES:		
	

 Daily operation of public utilities, including but not limited to, maintenance of 
motors, pumps, treatment systems, vehicles, equipment at the water resource 
recovery facility, the collection system and distribution system, and sample 
collection. 

 Operate and maintain meter stations, lift stations, water storage tanks, mains, and 
services. 

 Inspect and assist with the repair of drinking water and sewerage transmission 
mains and services. 

 General maintenance of facility and grounds. 
 Perform lab analysis and make necessary calculations and records results. 
 Rotating week-end schedule and be on call for emergencies. 
 Install and repair water meters, exercise hydrants and valves, as well as lushing 

hydrants. 
 Read water meters. 
 Work variable hours for water meter retro itting. 
 Communicate with Public Utilities team regarding status of equipment and samples. 
 Monitors a control station, levels, and other instruments to make necessary 

adjustments using a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) interface. 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
Reasonable	accommodations	may	be	made	to	enable	quali ied	individuals	

																														with	disabilities	to	perform	these	essential	functions.	

	
REQUIRED	SKILLS,	ABILITIES	and	KNOWLEDGE:	
	

 Ability to use computers with a working knowledge of Microsoft Of ice Suite.	
 Ability to work independently. 
 Ability to comprehend blueprints. 
 Ability to follow safety procedures to ensure a safe working environment. 
 Ability to communicate effectively on the telephone, text, and public settings. 
 Possession of good powers of observation and mechanical aptitude. 

 
Special	Requirements: Employee must obtain a Michigan S-4 Water Distribution Certi icate and 
Michigan Wastewater Treatment Operator Class D Certi icate through Michigan’s Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy within ive (5) years of date of hire.  
 
MINIMUM	QUALIFICATIONS:	 
	
Education:		 Minimum two (2) years college credit to include math, biology, 

and chemistry course with lab component, or equivalent.  
Experience:		 Previous public utility experience desired. 
Licenses:		  Possession of a valid, Michigan motor vehicle operator’s 

license 
 See Special Requirements noted above.  Applicants 

must have the desire to continue learning wastewater 
treatment and water distribution principles  

Miscellaneous:	  Basic reading and writing skills, with knowledge of 
spelling, punctuation, and grammar. 

 Collaboration and communication with other 
employees. 

 Logic, intuition, analysis, research, organization, and 
judgment skills. 

	
SUPERVISORY	RESPONSIBILITIES:			
	
None 
	
WORKING	CONDITIONS:		
	
General working conditions are outside.  Employees must be willing to work in all weather 
conditions, including adverse weather conditions.  
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR I 
 
	
PHYSICAL	REQUIREMENTS:		

 
 Ability to operate equipment involved in the maintenance of the facility. 
 Ability to lift and carry 50 lbs. 
 Ability and working knowledge of how to use hand tools. 

	
TRAVEL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	
Minimal (Conferences and Training Seminars) 
 
OTHER	DUTIES:			
	
Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
performed in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this 
job, nor is it intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township 
manager or supervisor to assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  
Duties, responsibilities, and activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any  
time, with or without notice. 
   

 
By signing below, I af irm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and 

had an opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position 
explained to me.   
 
APPLICANT:			

 
_______________________________________ __________________________________ ________________________ 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date

Allendale	 Charter	 Township	 is	 an	 “at‐will”,	 equal	 opportunity	 employer.	 	 If	 a	 job	 offer	 is	made,	
employment	may	be	contingent	upon	the	successful	completion	and	passage	of	a	medical	examination	
and	other	appropriate	background	 checks,	which	may	 include	providing	body	 substance	 samples	
(e.g.,	blood,	urine,	and/or	hair).		We	consider	applicants	for	all	positions	without	regard	to	race,	color,	
creed,	 religion,	 genetic	 information,	 gender,	 gender	 identity,	 sexual	 orientation,	 national	 origin,	
veteran	status,	age,	disability,	marital	status,	height,	weight,	or	any	other	 legally	protected	status	
under	local,	state,	or	federal	law.	

For Of ice Use Only:  

Received by:    ______________________________________ 

Date:             _______________________________________ 



“Where community is more than just a concept!” 

 OPERATOR LICENSE 
      REQUIREMENT 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

Congratulations on your employment with Allendale Charter Township. The daily work of the 
Public Utilities Department is divided between the water operations and sewer operations. The 
Superintendent, Wastewater Supervisor, Water Supervisor, and the Operators all have the ability to 
handle the responsibility for the entire water and sewer system if need arises. This demands that all 
personnel be well trained and certified.  

The position of Public Utilities Operator I requires that the employee, within five (5) 
years of his or her hire date, acquire the following certifications, through the Michigan 
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy: 

1. Michigan S-4 Water Distribution Certificate; and
2. Michigan Wastewater Treatment Operator Class D Certificate.

Additional details can be found at the following links:   
Drinking Water Operator Certification Information 
Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification Information 

Employee Acknowledgement: 

I, ________________________________________ [Print Name], an employee of Allendale Charter Township, 
acknowledge that I have been informed and understand that, as a condition of my employment at 
Allendale Charter Township (the “Township”), I am required to obtain and maintain the above-
referenced certifications through Michigan’s Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.  

I understand that these certifications are a fundamental requirement for the performance of my 
duties and responsibilities as outlined in my job description for the position of 
Public Utilities Operator I. I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to acquire these 
certifications within the agreed-upon timeframe of five (5) years from the date of my hire. 

I am aware that failure to acquire the specified certifications within the specified timeframe, or to 
maintain such certifications thereafter, will result in consequences, up to and including termination 
of my employment.  

I acknowledge that the Township has provided sufficient notice regarding the acquisition and upkeep 
of the required certifications. Furthermore, I understand that the Township may provide support, 
resources, or financial assistance to help me obtain the required certification. I will actively engage 
in pursuing these certifications and utilize any available resources to fulfill this requirement.  

ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
Human Resource Department 

6676 Lake Michigan Drive 

Allendale, MI 49401 

hr@allendale-twp.org  

We are an Equal Opportunity 
Employer and committed to 

Excellence through diversity. 

Please complete each line by printing in blue ink or typing.  

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/about/organization/drinking-water-and-environmental-health/drinking-water-operator-certification
https://www.michigan.gov/egle/about/organization/water-resources/op-cert-wastewater/municipal-wastewater-treatment-plant
mailto:hr@allendale-twp.org


I will take necessary steps to obtain the certifications within the specified timeframe, as 
communicated by the Township. I further agree to keep the Township informed of any changes in my 
certification status and understand that any expenses related to obtaining or renewing this 
certification are my responsibility except as otherwise stated in a Township policy or agreement. 

I understand that although I may have up to five (5) years to obtain the required certifications for 
this position, nothing herein shall be construed as creating a contract for employment for any definite 
period of time and that I remain an at-will employee of the Township. 

I acknowledge that I have read, understood, and agreed to comply with the Township’s policy 
regarding the acquisition and maintenance of the specified certifications.  

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Employee Signature   Date  

_________________________________ 
Employee’s Printed Name  

I confirm that I have discussed these certification requirements with the employee and provided 
necessary information and support regarding the acquisition of the specified certifications. 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Supervisor’s Signature  Date  

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
HR Representative’s Signature  Date  

For Office Use Only: 

Received by:    ______________________________________ 

Date:  _______________________________________ 

Date of Hire:   _____________________ 

Req. Certification Date:  _____________________ 
 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
 
JOB	TITLE:	 Public Utilities Operator II 
DEPARTMENT:	 Public Utilities 
REPORTS	TO:	 Water and Wastewater Supervisors and Superintendent 
FLSA	STATUS:	 Non-exempt 
POSITION	TYPE:	 Full time 7:00am-3:30pm, Rotating weekend/on-call schedule 
SALARY	RANGE:	 A-6 after three (3) years with the Utility DepartmentA-6 after 

three (3) years with the Utility Department and the appropriate 
licensing level. A one (1) dollar increase from the hourly rate of 
Public Utilities Operator I, no license incentive. 

EFFECTIVE	DATE:	 	
	
SUMMARY:   

This is a full-time position with Allendale Charter Township that requires some lexibility in 
working hours as overtime is required for mandatory rotating weekend shift. This position 
involves working with a team of approximately 5-8 other public utilities employees at the plant 
in Allendale, MIMichigan, as well as working offsite as required. Licensing is available through 
the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.   

Bene its include: health, dental, vision, generous 401(a) retirement program, short-term and 
long-term disability, life insurance, paid time off, and other insurance offerings options as 
desired. The wage range for this position is                            per hour. This position performs tasks 
involved in the operation, maintenance and repair of equipment and machinery in the Water 
Distribution System and Water Resource Recovery Facility.  Within prescribed limits, the 
operation and laboratory work is performed with considerable independence and without close 
supervision.  

Employees in this class will exercise leadership within their immediate work group and are 
responsible for performing highly technical work in operations of the water distribution system 
and water resource recovery facility. 

ESSENTIAL	DUTIES	AND	RESPONSIBILITIES:	 

 Daily operation of public utilities, including but not limited to, maintenance of 
motors, pumps, treatment systems, vehicles, equipment at the water resource 
recovery facility, the collection system and distribution system, and sample 
collection. 

 Operate and maintain meter stations, lift stations, water storage tanks, mains, and 
services. 

 Inspect and assist with the repair of drinking water and sewerage transmission 
mains and services. 

 General maintenance of facility and grounds. 
 Perform lab analysis and make necessary calculations and records results. 
 Rotating week-end schedule and be on call for emergencies. 
 Install and repair water meters, exercise hydrants and valves, as well as lushing 

hydrants. 
 Read water meters. 
 Work variable hours for water meter retro itting. 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
 Communicate with Public Utilities team regarding status of equipment and samples. 
 Monitors a control station, levels, and other instruments to make necessary 

adjustments using a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) interface. 
 Gathers data and assists in the preparation of a variety of complex records and 

reports as required which include but are not limited to those required by the State 
of Michigan or Utilities management. 

Reasonable	accommodations	may	be	made	to	enable	quali ied	individuals	
																																							with	disabilities	to	perform	these	essential	functions.	

 
REQUIRED	SKILLS,	ABILITIES	and	KNOWLEDGE:	
	

 Ability to use computers with a working knowledge of Microsoft Of ice Suite.	
 Ability to work independently. 
 Ability to comprehend blueprints.  
 Ability to follow safety procedures to ensure a safe working environment. 
 Ability to communicate effectively on the telephone, text, and public settings. 
 Possession of good powers of observation and mechanical aptitude. 

	
MINIMUM	QUALIFICATIONS:	 
	
Education:		 Minimum two (2) years college credit to include math, biology, 

and chemistry course with lab component. 
Experience:		  Previous public utility experience required. 

 3 years at Allendale Charter Township 
Licenses:		  Michigan Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Operator Certi ication Level B and a Michigan Municipal 
Water Distribution Operator Certi ication Level S-4. 

Or  
Michigan Municipal Water Distribution Operator 
Certi ication Level S-2 and a Michigan Municipal 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certi ication 
Level D. 

 Possession of a valid, Michigan motor vehicle operator’s 
license. 

Miscellaneous:	  Basic reading and writing skills, with knowledge of 
spelling, punctuation, and grammar.  

 Collaboration and communication with other 
employees. 

 Logic, intuition, analysis, research, organization, and 
judgment skills. 

	
SUPERVISORY	RESPONSIBILITIES:			
	
May supervise employees of a lower classi ication including, but not limited to Utility Plant 
Operator II, and seasonal employees. 
	
WORKING	CONDITIONS:		
	

Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria, 11.5 pt
Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Cambria, 11.5 pt



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
General working conditions are outside with increased of ice responsibilities.  Employee must 
be willing to work in all weather conditions, including adverse weather conditions.  
	
	
	
PHYSICAL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	

 Ability to operate equipment involved in the maintenance of the facility. 
 Ability to lift and carry 50 lbs. 
 Ability and working knowledge of how to use hand tools. 

TRAVEL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	
Minimal (Conferences and Training Seminars) 
	
OTHER	DUTIES:			
	
Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
performed in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this 
job, nor is it intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township 
manager or supervisor to assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  
Duties, responsibilities, and activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any 
time, with or without notice. 
   

 
By signing below, I af irm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and 

had an opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position 
explained to me.   
	
APPLICANT:			

 
_______________________________________ __________________________________ ________________________ 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date 
 
 
 

Allendale	 Charter	 Township	 is	 an	 “at‐will”,	 equal	 opportunity	 employer.	 	 If	 a	 job	 offer	 is	made,	
employment	may	be	contingent	upon	the	successful	completion	and	passage	of	a	medical	examination	
and	other	appropriate	background	 checks,	which	may	 include	providing	body	 substance	 samples	
(e.g.,	blood,	urine,	and/or	hair).		We	consider	applicants	for	all	positions	without	regard	to	race,	color,	
creed,	 religion,	 genetic	 information,	 gender,	 gender	 identity,	 sexual	 orientation,	 national	 origin,	
veteran	status,	age,	disability,	marital	status,	height,	weight,	or	any	other	 legally	protected	status	
under	local,	state,	or	federal	law.	

For Of ice Use Only:  

Received by:    ______________________________________ 

Date:             _______________________________________ 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
 
JOB	TITLE:	 Public Utilities Operator II 
DEPARTMENT:	 Public Utilities 
REPORTS	TO:	 Water and Wastewater Supervisors and Superintendent 
FLSA	STATUS:	 Non-exempt 
POSITION	TYPE:	 Full time 7:00am-3:30pm, Rotating weekend/on-call schedule 
SALARY	RANGE:	 A-6 after three (3) years with the Utility Department and the 

appropriate licensing level. A one (1) dollar increase from the 
hourly rate of Public Utilities Operator I, no license incentive. 

EFFECTIVE	DATE:	 	
	
SUMMARY:   

This is a full-time position with Allendale Charter Township that requires some lexibility in 
working hours as overtime is required for mandatory rotating weekend shift. This position 
involves working with a team of approximately 5-8 other public utilities employees at the plant 
in Allendale, Michigan, as well as working offsite as required. Licensing is available through the 
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.   

Bene its include: health, dental, vision, generous 401(a) retirement program, short-term and 
long-term disability, life insurance, paid time off, and other insurance offerings. This position 
performs tasks involved in the operation, maintenance and repair of equipment and machinery 
in the Water Distribution System and Water Resource Recovery Facility.  Within prescribed limits, 
the operation and laboratory work is performed with considerable independence and without 
close supervision.  

Employees in this class will exercise leadership within their immediate work group and are 
responsible for performing highly technical work in operations of the water distribution system 
and water resource recovery facility. 

ESSENTIAL	DUTIES	AND	RESPONSIBILITIES:	 

 Daily operation of public utilities, including but not limited to, maintenance of 
motors, pumps, treatment systems, vehicles, equipment at the water resource 
recovery facility, the collection system and distribution system, and sample 
collection. 

 Operate and maintain meter stations, lift stations, water storage tanks, mains, and 
services. 

 Inspect and assist with the repair of drinking water and sewerage transmission 
mains and services. 

 General maintenance of facility and grounds. 
 Perform lab analysis and make necessary calculations and records results. 
 Rotating week-end schedule and be on call for emergencies. 
 Install and repair water meters, exercise hydrants and valves, as well as lushing 

hydrants. 
 Read water meters. 
 Work variable hours for water meter retro itting. 
 Communicate with Public Utilities team regarding status of equipment and samples. 



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
 Monitors a control station, levels, and other instruments to make necessary 

adjustments using a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) interface. 
 Gathers data and assists in the preparation of a variety of complex records and 

reports as required which include but are not limited to those required by the State 
of Michigan or Utilities management. 

Reasonable	accommodations	may	be	made	to	enable	quali ied	individuals	
with	disabilities	to	perform	these	essential	functions.	

 
REQUIRED	SKILLS,	ABILITIES	and	KNOWLEDGE:	
	

 Ability to use computers with a working knowledge of Microsoft Of ice Suite.	
 Ability to work independently. 
 Ability to comprehend blueprints.  
 Ability to follow safety procedures to ensure a safe working environment. 
 Ability to communicate effectively on the telephone, text, and public settings. 
 Possession of good powers of observation and mechanical aptitude. 

	
MINIMUM	QUALIFICATIONS:	 
	
Education:		 Minimum two (2) years college credit to include math, biology, 

and chemistry course with lab component. 
Experience:		  Previous public utility experience required. 

 3 years at Allendale Charter Township 
Licenses:		  Michigan Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Operator Certi ication Level B and a Michigan Municipal 
Water Distribution Operator Certi ication Level S-4 

Or 
Michigan Municipal Water Distribution Operator 
Certi ication Level S-2 and a Michigan Municipal 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certi ication 
Level D. 

 Possession of a valid, Michigan motor vehicle operator’s 
license. 

Miscellaneous:	  Basic reading and writing skills, with knowledge of 
spelling, punctuation, and grammar.  

 Collaboration and communication with other 
employees. 

 Logic, intuition, analysis, research, organization, and 
judgment skills. 

	
SUPERVISORY	RESPONSIBILITIES:			
	
May supervise employees of a lower classi ication including, but not limited to Utility Plant 
Operator I, and seasonal employees. 
	
	
	
	



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 
	
WORKING	CONDITIONS:		
	
General working conditions are outside with increased of ice responsibilities.  Employee must 
be willing to work in all weather conditions, including adverse weather conditions.  
	
PHYSICAL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	

 Ability to operate equipment involved in the maintenance of the facility. 
 Ability to lift and carry 50 lbs. 
 Ability and working knowledge of how to use hand tools. 

TRAVEL	REQUIREMENTS:		
	
Minimal (Conferences and Training Seminars) 
	
OTHER	DUTIES:			
	
Please note this job description is intended to describe the general nature and level of work 
performed in this job.  It is not intended to provide an exhaustive list of all skills required in this 
job, nor is it intended to limit the authority of the Township Supervisor or any Township 
manager or supervisor to assign or direct the activities of employees under his or her direction.  
Duties, responsibilities, and activities may change, or new requirements may be assigned, at any 
time, with or without notice. 
   

 
By signing below, I af irm that I have received a copy of this job description, read it, and 

had an opportunity to have the job requirements, essential functions, and duties of this position 
explained to me.   
	
APPLICANT:			

 
_______________________________________ __________________________________ ________________________ 
Name (Print)     Signature     Date 
 
 

Allendale	 Charter	 Township	 is	 an	 “at‐will”,	 equal	 opportunity	 employer.	 	 If	 a	 job	 offer	 is	made,	
employment	may	be	contingent	upon	the	successful	completion	and	passage	of	a	medical	examination	
and	other	appropriate	background	 checks,	which	may	 include	providing	body	 substance	 samples	
(e.g.,	blood,	urine,	and/or	hair).		We	consider	applicants	for	all	positions	without	regard	to	race,	color,	
creed,	 religion,	 genetic	 information,	 gender,	 gender	 identity,	 sexual	 orientation,	 national	 origin,	
veteran	status,	age,	disability,	marital	status,	height,	weight,	or	any	other	 legally	protected	status	
under	local,	state,	or	federal	law.	



                                                                  PUBLIC UTILITIES OPERATOR II 

For Of ice Use Only:  

Received by:    ______________________________________ 

Date:             _______________________________________ 



 

 2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.1000 
F: 616.977.1005 

P19817 Allendale - WM North Loop-South Connector        www.fveng.com 

December 29, 2023 
 
 
Via email:  chaddoornbos@allendale-twp.org 
 
Mr. Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities 
Allendale Charter Township 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive 
P.O. Box 539 
Allendale, MI 49401 
  
RE: Design Engineering Proposal – Watermain North Loop and South Connector 
  
Dear Chad, 
  
We have prepared a work plan and proposal to complete the design engineering for the Township’s planned 

water system improvements known as the North Loop and South Connector. 

 

Project Understanding 
The proposed project involves 12” watermain extension and looping in both the northern and southern 

water districts of the township. The Northern Loop includes the extension of the water system on 60th Ave 

from Comfort St., north approx. 6,800 feet to Lincoln St, then west approx. 5,400 feet on Lincoln St. to 68th 

Ave, then south approx. 2,800 feet on 68th Ave to Warner St. The water system may require the installation 

of a pressure reducing valve(s) and building. These water system improvements will allow for some of the 

Township’s northern water district residents to be removed from the Coopersville transmission line.  

 

The Southern Connector includes the extension of the water system on Pierce St. from 68th Ave., east 

approx. 9,400 feet to Richfield Lane. This will provide the water system trunkline and future improvements 

will include connections to Pierce St. from the existing dead ends on 64th, 60th, and 56th Avenues. 

 

Proposed Work Plan 

Preliminary Design Phase 
 

1. Meet with Township staff to review project requirements, work scope, and overall schedule.   
 

2. Request mapping of private utilities in the right of way and evaluate the impact of the project on 
gas, electric, telephone and cable television facilities to American Society of Civil Engineers 
Subsurface Utility Engineering Level C. 

 
3. Utilize topographic survey of the project area previously collected through Township and F&V 

Agreement executed on December 2, 2022. 
 

4. Obtain soil borings needed for design. We anticipate two soil borings every mile. 
 



Allendale Charter Township │Watermain North Loop and South Connector | December 29, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

P19817 Allendale - WM North Loop-South Connector  

5. Perform localized water modeling to evaluate need for Pressure Reducing Valves (PRV). 
 

6. Complete preliminary design of the proposed water improvements noted above and PRV building. 
 
7. Meet with Township & Village to review preliminary design.  Incorporate comments and draft 

preliminary design and details on construction drawings. 
 
8. Prepare specifications, list of bid items, quantities and estimate of construction costs.
 
9. Send plans to utility companies for their information and review. 
 

Final Design Phase: 

1. Complete final design and prepare final construction drawings and specifications in accordance 

with Township standards. 

 

2. Prepare updated estimate of probable construction cost. 

 

3. Prepare permit applications and submit to the various agencies, expected to be EGLE and Ottawa 

County Road Commission.  

 

4. Revise plans per permitting agency comments, if necessary. 

 

5. Meet with Township to review final plans and specifications and make final revisions incorporating 

Township comments. 

 

6. Provide a complete set of construction documents including detailed drawings and specifications. 

 

Following delivery of the Construction Documents, we will provide a proposed Scope of Services and 

Budget for bidding and construction phase services. Additionally, if the Township wishes that F&V 

Construction provide construction management services for this project, we will prepare and provide a DBIA 

contract, familiar to the Township, at the appropriate time. 

 

Fee & Schedule 

We propose to provide the Scope of Services outlined above for a Lump Sum Fee of $270,000.  We are 

prepared to begin design services within two weeks of authorization to proceed.  It is estimated that 

design will take 6 to 7 months to complete, including agency reviews.  

The project delivery method and financing method will determine the bidding and construction schedule.  

We will work closely with you and the Township’s financial advisors throughout final design process to 

develop the construction timeline and help deliver a successful project.    

 

Authorization to proceed with this work under our existing Engineering Services Agreement dated 

February 25, 1993, can be given by returning a copy of this proposal signed where indicated.  

 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Allendale Charter Township.  If you have any questions 
or comments, please do not hesitate to contact us.  
 
 
 
 
 



Allendale Charter Township │Watermain North Loop and South Connector | December 29, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

P19817 Allendale - WM North Loop-South Connector  

Sincerely, 
 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC 
 
  
 
 
 
Brant Mercer, P.E. Don DeVries, P.E. 
Project Manager Principal  
 
 
 
WORK AUTHORIZATION 
 
Fleis & VandenBrink (F&V) is hereby authorized to perform Services as detailed in this proposal and 
authorized under the Professional Services Agreement with F&V dated February 25, 1993. 
 
 
____________________________________        
Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities Date  
Allendale Charter Township 



 

2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.1000 
F: 616.977.1005 

P19844_Pierce 56th Ave Lift Station Proposal  www.fveng.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 29, 2023 
 
Via email:  chaddoornbos@allendale-twp.org 
 
Mr. Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities 
Allendale Charter Township 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive 
P.O. Box 539 
Allendale, MI 49401 
 
RE:  Design Services Proposal – 56th Avenue Lift Station Improvements   
  
Dear Chad, 
 
Thank you for your request for a proposal to provide design engineering for the 56th Avenue Lift Station and 
associated infrastructure. We have prepared a work plan and proposal to complete the engineering services 
for the Township’s planned sanitary sewer, lift station, and roadway improvements along Pierce St.  
 

Project Understanding 
It is understood that the lift station construction and sanitary sewer expansion will be necessary to 
accommodate further development along the Township’s Pierce St corridor. The roadway and sewer 
improvements proposed are a vital component to serving the Township’s growing population and need. 
 

Scope of Services 

The following is our understanding of the design scope of the project: 

1. Design the sanitary sewer collection system running along Pierce Street from 60th Avenue to 
Richfield Lane (4,200 LF).  

2. Perform a flow analysis through the southern sewer district of the Township in conjunction with the 
Sanitary Sewer Master Plan to determine proposed lift station design and future flows. 

3. Design the lift station and site to occupy the NE corner of the 56th Ave and Pierce St. intersection. 

a. Select a prefabricated building to house the electrical controls. 

b. Design pumps and generator for projected wastewater flows. 

c. Assist the Township with easement descriptions and sketches. 

4. Design the forcemain from the lift station to an existing manhole near Richfield Lane on Pierce St 
(1,500 LF). 

5. Design Pierce St. roadway improvements from current asphalt limits near Mystic Woods to 60th Ave. 
curb returns (3,700 LF). 

6. Utilize water main design from the Watermain South Connector project to service the proposed lift 
station. 



Allendale Charter Township | 56th Ave Lift Station and Improvements | December 29, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

 

P19844_Pierce 56th Ave Lift Station Proposal  

7. Design restoration and landscaping improvements to the site similar to existing Township lift station 
screenings.  

8. Develop a construction management plan with the Township to build the project. 

 

Proposed Work Plan 

Preliminary Design Phase 
1. Meet with the Township staff to review project requirements, work scope, and overall schedule.   

2. Request mapping of private utilities in the right-of-way and evaluate the impact of the project on gas, 
electric, telephone and cable television facilities to American Society of Civil Engineers Subsurface 
Utility Engineering Level C. 

3. Utilize topographic survey of the project area previously collected.  Collect additional topographic 
survey for the new lift station 150 Ft x 200 Ft site and along Pierce for necessary roadway 
improvements. 

4. Obtain soil borings needed for design. We anticipate six soil borings, four along Pierce St and two at 
the lift station site. 

5. Design improvements as stated above in the Scope of Work. 

6. Conduct three work sessions with staff to review design progress and develop details. 

7. Prepare a project manual of construction specifications for bidding purposes. 

8. Prepare and submit EGLE Part 41 for Sewer, Ottawa County Road Commission, and Ottawa County 
Water Resources Commission permit applications.  

9. Revise plans per permitting agency comments, if necessary. 

10. Provide a complete set of construction documents including detailed drawings and specifications. 

Following delivery of the Construction Documents, we will provide a proposed Scope of Services and Budget 
for bidding and construction phase services. Additionally, we will prepare and provide a DBIA construction 
management contract to construct the improvements similar to other F&V Construction project deliveries in 
the Township. 
 

Schedule 
We are prepared to begin design services within two weeks of authorization to proceed.  It is estimated that 
final design will take 6 to 9 months to complete, including agency reviews.   

The project delivery method and financing method will determine the bidding and construction schedule.  We 
will work closely with you and the Township’s financial advisors throughout final design process to develop 
the construction timeline and help deliver a successful project.    

 
Budget 

We propose to complete the Scope of Services outlined above for a Lump Sum Fee of $300,000. A separate 
budget for construction management and administration can be provided after the design is complete. 

 

Authorization to proceed with this work under our existing Engineering Services Agreement dated February 
25, 1993, can be given by returning a copy of this proposal signed where indicated.  

 

 



Allendale Charter Township | 56th Ave Lift Station and Improvements | December 29, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

 

P19844_Pierce 56th Ave Lift Station Proposal  

Please contact us if you have any questions. We look forward to working with you on this important project. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK 
 
      
 
Brant Mercer, P.E.     Don DeVries, P.E. 
Project Manager     Principal 
 
 
 
WORK AUTHORIZATION 
 
Fleis & VandenBrink (F&V) is hereby authorized to perform Services as detailed in this proposal and 
authorized under the Professional Services Agreement with F&V dated February 25, 1993. 
 
 
 
 
    
  
Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities   Date 
Allendale Charter Township 
 



 

2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.1000 
F: 616.977.1005 

P18615 Allendale Sewer Master Plan Proposal_Updated  www.fveng.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 29, 2023 
 
Mr. Chad Doornbos 
Superintendent of Public Utilities 
Allendale Charter Township 
6676 Lake Michigan Drive 
Allendale, MI 49401 
 
RE: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Proposal 
 
Dear Chad, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to propose updating the Township’s Master Plan for the sanitary sewer 

district. Such planning provides a foundation for your capital improvement plans as well as offering 

budget guidance for the future. This letter provides some background information as well as outlines our 

approach to master plan your sewage collection system.  

 

Project Understanding 
Allendale’s sewer collection master plan was created by Fleis & VandenBrink (F&V) in 2003. It consisted 

of a service district map and corresponding spreadsheet of flow calculations. This information served as 

the basis for planning updates of various local areas within said district. Over the years, many 

improvements have been made and the district boundaries have evolved. Growth trends within the 

Township over the last 19 years have identified areas where new improvements are anticipated to 

increase the sewage flows to the Water Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF). For future planning 

purposes, it has become necessary to update the overall master plan and computations. 

 

Scope of Services 
The following services are proposed: 

1. Conduct a kick-off meeting to identify the decision makers of the plan, and review mapping 

requirements and analysis needs of the Department of Public Utilities. 

2. Develop a new overall map based upon the existing system. 

3. Identify a service district boundary based on the needs and anticipated growth of the Township. 

4. Update all calculations within a spreadsheet based on current flow data available as well as 

anticipated growth within the Township. Calculations will also consider projects currently under 

way and those in design such as the Phase 2 collection system upgrades and Pierce/56th Ave Lift 

Station. 

5. Anticipated growth will be considered within the district boundaries. 

6. Conduct one progress meeting at the 75% stage of completion. 

7. Perform a quality assurance and quality control review. 

8. Present deliverables to the Township consisting of new maps and computations. 

 



Allendale Charter Township | Sewer Master Plan│December 29, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

 

P18615 Allendale Sewer Master Plan Proposal_Updated 

Timeline 
We plan to initiate work on the project within two weeks of your authorization to proceed. We expect to 

complete our work in conjunction with the Pierce/56th Ave. Lift Station design and be completed in 2024. 

 

Budget 
We propose to complete the above outlined scope of services for a lump sum fee of $47,000. 

 

Authorization to proceed with this work can be given by returning a copy of this proposal signed where 

indicated. Please contact us if you have any questions. We look forward to working with you on this 

important project. 

 
Sincerely,  
 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK 
 
 
 
Brant Mercer, PE Don DeVries, P.E. 
Project Manager Principal 
 
 
 
WORK AUTHORIZATION 

 

Fleis & VandenBrink Engineering, Inc. (F&V) is hereby authorized to perform Services as detailed in this 
proposal under the existing General Consultation Professional Services Agreement with F&V dated 
February 25, 1993. 
 
ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 
 
 
Chad Doornbos, Superintendent of Public Utilities  Date  
Allendale Charter Township 
 


	1-8-2024 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	JANUARY SESSION 1st DAY

	2023 Monthly Stats.pdf
	Sheet1


	Print Name 1: 
	Date: 
	Employee's Printed Name: 
	Date-0: 
	Date-1: 
	Received by: 
	Textfield-3: 
	Textfield-4: 
	Req Certification Date: 


